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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Cohen and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH:  Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Richard Thompson, Director of Community Development 
   Esteban Danna, Assistant Planner  

Erik Zandvliet, City Traffic Engineer 
 
DATE:  June 16, 2009 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Parking and Public Improvements Commission   
   recommendation to Adopt Parking Policies for Sepulveda Boulevard 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Council pass a motion to approve the Parking and Public Improvements 
Commission (PPIC) recommendations to adopt a policy in support of limited parking restrictions 
near traffic signals along Sepulveda Boulevard during peak traffic flow hours on a case-by-case 
basis, and to oppose a blanket parking prohibition on Sepulveda Boulevard. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
No Fiscal Impact.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
During Work Plan discussions in 2008, the City Council identified and prioritized several traffic 
studies to be conducted throughout the City.  The City Council’s 2008-2009 Work Plan includes 
a task to consider the potential impacts of imposing further parking restrictions along Sepulveda 
Boulevard, and analyze possible traffic and parking impacts, alternatives and restrictions to 
balance regional transportation needs with the preservation of local business parking and 
protection of adjacent residential neighborhoods.  The PPIC and City Council staff reports are a 
summary of the Traffic Engineer’s analysis, findings and recommendations resulting from this 
study.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Pursuant to the Work Plan, the City Traffic Engineer began a study of the existing parking and 
traffic conditions along Sepulveda Boulevard in January 2009.  On February 26, 2009, the 
Commission reviewed the staff report describing the current parking conditions along the 
Sepulveda Boulevard corridor and reviewed a list of findings for the Commission to consider (See 
attached PPIC report). After hearing both resident and business concerns and suggestions, the 
Commission directed staff to conduct additional analysis and explore possible measures that could 
be implemented to manage current and future parking conditions along Sepulveda Boulevard.  The 
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PPIC was interested in identifying what could be done about the existing parking impacts in the 
surrounding neighborhoods as well as determining what additional impacts would occur if parking 
were completely removed from Sepulveda Boulevard.   
 
PPIC Meeting 
On April 23, 2009, the Commission reviewed the City Traffic Engineer’s evaluation of possible 
actions that would be required to mitigate parking and residential traffic intrusion impacts as they 
exist now, as well as additional potential impacts if curb parking were removed from Sepulveda 
Boulevard completely.  The Commission again heard both resident and business concerns and 
suggestions and discussed possible policy recommendations.     
 
Mailed notices were sent to all residents and businesses within 300 feet of the Sepulveda Boulevard 
corridor prior to each of the PPIC meetings.  The Commission heard from three (3) residents and 
eight (8) business owners and received written correspondence from five additional residents on 
this matter.  The residents were concerned about current parking impacts and congestion on local 
streets such as Oak Avenue and Dianthus Street/Duncan Avenue/1st Street as the result of 
insufficient business parking, while business owners felt that any additional street parking 
restrictions would adversely impact their businesses.    
 
As described in the attached report, City staff recommended that the Commission approve a policy 
to consider limited parking prohibitions along Sepulveda Boulevard near heavily congested 
signalized intersections on a case-by-case basis. The Commissioners recommendation is based on 
several findings and observations, including: 
 

1. The intersections are the primary constraint on traffic flow, not mid-block. Restricted 
parking in the curb lanes approaching and departing the traffic signal would improve 
intersection capacity by adding an additional lane.   

2. Traffic flow is not constricted during off-peak times, when street parking is needed by 
adjacent businesses, so an all-day parking prohibition is not necessary. 

3. Many businesses need convenient short-term street parking as a function of their operation.  
4. The loss of additional parking would increase traffic intrusion into the neighborhoods 

caused by drivers searching for spaces. 
5. The expected adverse impacts to those businesses that do not have sufficient off-street 

parking outweigh the limited operational benefit that would be gained by prohibiting mid-
block parking.  

6. Additional parking restrictions would be expected to create additional parking and 
circulation impacts to the surrounding neighborhoods.   

7. Intersection capacity improvements are already planned for two intersections at Marine 
Avenue and Manhattan Beach Boulevard. 

8. Some of the overflow street parking would be relieved if business owners/managers 
stopped the practice of prohibiting employee parking in their parking lots.   

9. Proactive measures to improve the off-street parking supply should be implemented before 
considering the removal of any additional street parking.    

 
As part of the comprehensive study, the Traffic Engineer identified several pockets of current 
neighborhood parking impacts that could be addressed by initiating neighborhood traffic 
management plans or providing parking incentives to businesses.  The PPIC offered several 
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suggestions (Exhibit 1) that the City Council may want to discuss when staff and discretionary 
funding resources become available.  
   
Meeting notices for the City Council meeting were sent to all residences and businesses within 
300 feet of Sepulveda Boulevard within the City limits.      
        
Exhibits: 1. Potential Parking Management Actions 

2. PPIC Report dated 4/23/09 with attachments 
3. PPIC Minutes 2/26/09 and 4/23/09 
4. City Council Meeting Notice 
5. Public Comments 

G:\1 TRAFFIC & ROW DIVISION\TRAFFIC ENGINEER\City Council\CSR-Sepulveda Parking Study 6-16-09 rev1.doc 
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EXHIBIT 1 

SEPULVEDA BOULEVARD CORRIDOR 
POTENTIAL PARKING MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 

 
At its April 23, 2009 meeting, Parking and Public Improvements Commission recommended 
several potential actions to improve existing parking issues as follows:   
 

A. Initiate Neighborhood Traffic Management Plans in areas that have been identified with 
parking or traffic intrusion issues, beginning with the Oak Avenue neighborhood from 
Rosecrans Avenue to Manhattan Beach Boulevard, and the Duncan Avenue/Dianthus 
Street/1st Street/2nd Street neighborhood.    

B. Study the feasibility of facilitating a BID or business association to address parking 
issues related to the Sepulveda Boulevard Corridor. 

C. Explore options restricting access to Oak Avenue between Rosecrans Avenue and 
Manhattan Beach Boulevard to eliminate southbound cut-through commuter traffic. 

 
Any or all of these actions may be approved separately or evaluated pursuant to the City Council’s 
Work Plan discussions.   
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